
 
 

Approved on May 19, 2022 Page 1 
 

 
 

GUAM SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING MINUTES 

Friday, April 22, 2022 
1:00 pm- 2:43 pm 

Guam Solid Waste Authority Via Video Conference 
 

I. Call to Order 
Chairman Gayle called the meeting to order for the Guam Solid Waste Authority (GSWA) Board of Directors' 
meeting at 1:07  pm. 

 
II. Roll Call 

Board Members: 
Andrew Gayle    Chairman 
Minakshi Hemlani   Vice Chairwoman 
Peggy Denney    Secretary 
Jim Oehlerking    Member 
Cora Montellano   Member 

 
Management & Staff:  
Irvin Slike    General Manager 
Pedro A. Leon Guerrero Jr.  Assistant General Manager 
Kathrine Kakigi    Comptroller 
Alicia Fejeran    Chief of Administration 
Roman Perez    Superintendent 
Keilani Mesa    Administrative Officer  
Aileen Cruz     Administrative Assistant   
 
Guests: 
Senator Sabina Perez   Office of Senator Sabina Flores Perez 
David Sablan    Members of the public 
Ken Leon Guerrero    Members of the public 
 

 
III. Determination of Proof of Publication  

1st Publication with The Guam Daily Post on Friday, April 15, 2022.  
2nd Publication with The Guam Daily Post on Wednesday, April 20, 2022. 

 
IV. Approval of Agenda Items 

Vice Chairwoman Hemlani made a motion to proceed with the agenda prepared and provided by Chairman 
Gayle. Secretary Denney seconded the motion. There was no further discussion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
V. Approval of Minutes 

Vice Chairwoman Hemlani made a motion to approve the minutes from the meeting held on March 17, 2022. 
Secretary Denney seconded the motion. There was no discussion, and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
VI. Reports 

a. Management Reports 



 
 

Approved on May 19, 2022 Page 2 
 

I. Operational Update 
General Manager Slike reported that he met with the current contractors for the Layon Landfill Operations 
and they tacitly agreed to remove the excess waste overcharges for the upcoming contract renewal. He 
stated that the elimination of these charges will result in the potential savings of $500k per year. The 
elimination of escort services was also discussed and may save about $50k. He stated that the contract 
will be expiring at the end of FY 2022. It was agreed to cap the CPI at an increase of no more than 5%. He 
believes there will be a reduction in costs. Green Group is expected to respond re contract in early May, so 
management will know then whether or not to renew the contract. Comptroller Kakigi’s budget includes 
status quo and not potential savings. 
General Manager Slike also reported that he had a discussion with EA Engineering and GWA regarding 
excessive leachate testing, which was originally required by GBB. EA will prepare a report indicating that 
the monotonous and frequent sampling events are unjustifiable, so GSWA may save up to $200K if 
frequency of testing is reduced. GWA will make the final decision on the frequency of testing.  
Mr. Slike also reported that he had put together an RFP draft of the Harmon Household Hazardous Waste 
contract with options of the disposal of waste with potential savings of about $300k annually. RFP deadline 
is December 2022.  
Chief of Administration Fejeran updated the Board that the Flat Bed IFB was awarded and expected 
delivery date of trucks is 90 days. She also stated that GSWA is in the process of the Refuse Truck Bid 
and is currently being reviewed by the AG’s office, and general timeline is at least 12 to 14 months. 
General Manager Slike stated that shipment of 400 new trash carts is expected by August 2022, with a 
purchase of two more containers for 2023. He and Asst. GM Leon Guerrero are striving to address 
customer complaints, issues with drivers and streamlining the routes. General Manager Slike informed the 
board that he and Comptroller Kakigi have been working on grants regarding solar cap to generate energy, 
reduce the production of heat at Ordot via the implementation of microturbines, and address gas clean up 
while decreasing leachate disposal costs with leachate evaporators. Online payments system currently 
under procurement but is close to being implemented.  General Manager Slike also informed the board that 
he had had a meeting regarding the ISWM Plan with goals of 50% recycling by 2030 to potentially include 
mandatory kitchen waste composting, but cost to customers must be considered. Jacobs group has a goal 
to produce a draft plan by November 2022 with a final plan in early 2023. 
 
Comptroller Kakigi presented the FY2023 Budget Hearing to the Board. She stated that there will be a 
reduction in sludge production at the northern wastewater treatment plant which will negatively affect 
GSWA revenues. She stated that we are below our projected expenditures by .6%. She also presented the 
comparison to FY2021 and revenues exceeded about $2M and had almost $500K in operating revenue. 
As for operating performance, she reported that the total expenditures increased to over $800K due to 
increase in rates and contractual obligations. Comptroller Kakigi also presented the commercial tonnage 
which is 2.8% higher than last year. For residential tonnage, she also stated that there is a trend with a 
month-to-month increase. Superintendent Perez stated that they will be working on delivering of 40-50 
carts per day to residential customers. Chief of Administration shared that there are more than enough 
carts to fulfill our current backlog.  
Comptroller Kakigi stated that there will be a PSA regarding collection of payments at GPWA beginning 
June 6. Chairman Gayle stated that we will discontinue accepting payments at ANZ because they will be 
closing their operations. Comptroller Kakigi presented the Merchant Services breakdown which showed 
significant savings. She also stated that key indicators as of February 2022 have improved. 

 
II. FY2023 Budget 

General Manager Slike presented the Budget Request and stated that revenues were taken by the existing 
trend with commercial and government rates resulting in the estimates for FY22-23. He stated that GSWA 
may go over if the trends continue in 2023 but conservative estimates were used. He stated that ARPA 
funds  



 
 

Approved on May 19, 2022 Page 3 
 

 
 
 
and reimbursement engineering fees from the cell 3 construction were included. He then discussed the 
expenditure side of the budget, which maintains the majority of the contracts as static, but it includes a 
6.6% increase for personnel which will comprise a two-step increase in the pay schedule with more detail 
to be presented to the board in May. Additionally, the increase of $200K in miscellaneous is to restore the 
Layon Closure fund. Member Montellano moved to adopt the FY2023 Budget Board Resolution 2022-07. 
Secretary Denney seconded the motion. There was no further discussion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
b.  Legal Counsel's Report 

 No discussion 
 

c.  Committee reports 
 
 
I. Zero Waste Round Table / Revolving Recycling Fund Subsidy 

Assistant General Manager Leon Guerrero updated the board that there is a tentative schedule for a public 
hearing on May 11. He stated that Senator Perez intends to schedule a round table discussion regarding 
the Zero Waste Bill. He also shared that the benefits of this bill would be a possible reimbursement of 
$400K for GSWA recycling expenditures of previous fiscal year, with proof of expense. It is anticipated that 
this will be an annual reimbursement with proof of expense. Secretary Denney motioned to adopt 
resolution 2022-009 which authorizes GSWA to take the appropriate actions necessary to possibly receive 
the reimbursement. Member Oehlerking seconded the motion. There was no further discussion, with 
motion passed unanimously.    

    
VII. Unfinished Business 

a. Island Wide Trash Collection Initiative 
No update 

b. Ordot Post Closure Plan Update 
General Manager Slike reported that he had a conference call with Harvey Gershman and Chris Lund of 
GBB. They will provide a draft schedule of the Ordot cost for review and approval by end of April. He also 
stated that the leachate monitoring at Ordot was discussed, and monitoring twice a year was recommended. 
This will result in savings for GSWA. He stated that GBB’s lawyer has contacted Guam Environmental 
Protection Agency’s (GEPA) lawyer to initiate resolution.   

c. Layon Cells 1 and 2 Closure 
General Manager Slike reported that he is still working on the RFP for cap feasibility study. He also stated 
that Green Group has placed a layer of silt to cut down on infiltration for reduction of leachate on cells 1 and 
2.   

e. Rate Case with the Public Utilities Commission 
Chief of Administration Fejeran reported that GWSA is in the negotiation stage with the top-ranked 
proposer. General Manager states that before the contractor is announced, the contract must be finalized.  

 
VIII. New Business 

a. GSWA Compensation Plan 
Tabled for next meeting 

 
IX. Communications and Correspondence  

No discussion   



 
 

Approved on May 19, 2022 Page 4 
 

 
 
X. Public Forum 

a. Cory Hinds – GEPA/ Jacobs Update on Guam Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan (ISWMP) 
Tabled for next meeting 
 

b. David Sablan – Waste to Energy Project 
Mr. Sablan presented to the board a development of energy proposal to manage solid waste on the island. 
He stated that the project can produce at least 12 megawatts of energy with 300 tons of waste produced 
daily. He further explained that burning solid waste will reduce the volume by about 90%. He stated that this 
will increase the life of the landfill cell by another 45 years. He recommended that this proposal be 
considered seriously for environmental concerns. He stated that waste energy produces green energy, on 
the same level as solar and wind for green energy production. Mr. Sablan also stated that he is working with 
the military to include waste energy with Guam Power Authority. He stated that by 2025 military bases are 
mandated to have 40% of their energy source be from green energy.   

 
XI. Next meeting 

The next meeting will be via video conference on Thursday, May 19, 2022, at 1:00 pm. 
 
XII. Adjourn  

Vice Chairwoman Hemlani made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Secretary Denney seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously, and the meeting adjourned at 3:01pm. 



17

GUAM
 DAILY POST • THURSDAY, M

AY 12, 2022

WORLD “All the world’s a stage, and all the men and women merely players.” – Jaques. Keep up with nonfictional world players and events in this section. Send us your thoughts to editor@postguam.com.

Guam Solid Waste Authority
Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Thursday, May 19, 2022 – 1:00 PM (ChST)

AGENDA
I. Call to order
II. Roll Call
III. Determination of Proof of Publication
IV. Approval of Agenda Items
V. Approval of Minutes
VI. Reports
 a. Management Reports
     I. Operational Update
    II. FY21 Audit Report
 b. Legal Counsel’s Report
 c. Committee Reports
     I. Zero Waste Bill
VII. Unfinished Business
 a. Island Wide Trash Collection Initiative
 b. Ordot Post Closure Plan Update
 c. Layon Cells 1 and 2 Closure
 d. Rate Case with the Public Utilities Commission
VIII. New Business
 a. Compensation Plan
     I. Resolution No. 2022-008
IX. Communicating and Correspondence
X. Public Forum:
 a. Ken Leon Guerrero
XI. Next Meeting
XII. Adjourn 

Join Zoom Meeting:
Link: https://zoom.us/j/9140408814?pwd=TjZ3U0dHSVd0ajlKRjBhcWFrc1ZYZz09

 Meeting ID: 914 040 8814   Passcode: 777546

For more information, please contact GSWA Chief of Administration, Alicia Fejeran, at 
Alicia.Fejeran@gswa.guam.gov or 671-646-3111. Persons needing telecommunication device for the 

Hearing/Speech Impaired (TDD) may contact 671-475-8339.

This advertisement was paid for by GSWA.

Access live stream of the meeting on GSWA website: https://www.guamsolidwasteauthority.com/

The Guam Solid Waste Authority Board of Directors will have a board meeting May 19, 2022 at 1:00 PM. 

The meeting will be conducted via Zoom

Guam Community Health Centers
Board of Director’s Meeting

Thursday, May 19, 2022
Southern Community Health Center-2 p.m.

AGENDA
1) Call Meeting to order
2) Review and approval of meeting minutes
3) Public Forum
4) Old Business:

a) CEO Recruitment
b) Acting CEO Appointment follow-up
c) Board Member Recruitment follow-up
d) Provider Recruitment

5) New Business
a) CHC Board Member Conflict of   

          Interest Statement
b) NRCHC Mural
c) Electronic Health Record Selection   

         and Implementation

d) DPHSS (Guam CHC) – DOA MOU 
    (General Accounting Supervisor)
e) ARPA Minor Renovations
f) ARPA Capital Grant
g) ARPA Grant Supplemental Fund

6) Financial Report
7) Treasurer’s Report
8) Announcements/Open Discussion

a) PCMH Renewal
9) Schedule Next Meeting
10) Adjournment

 For special accommodations please call (671) 635-7447
This ad is paid by the GCHC Program Income, DPHSS

The Guam Developmental Disabilities Council will be having its Virtual Executive 
Committee Meeting on Wednesday May 18, 2022 starting at 9:00am. For 
additional information, please call (671) 735-9127. Request(s) for special 
accommodation must be submitted 72 hours in advance.

AGENDA
I. Call to Order / Roll Call
II. Review of Minutes:

A. Wednesday November 17, 2022
B. Wednesday February 23, 2022

III. Reports
A. Executive Directors Report
B. Council Membership Status
C. Standing Committee Reports
D. Attendance Matrix

IV. Old Business
A. FY-2022 Budget
B. ACL / OIDD Funding
    1. Expanding Disabilities Network’s   

         Access to COVID-19 Vaccines
     2. Public Health Workforce Grant   
         Funding
C. 2020 / 2021 Program Performance   
     Report
D. Pay Adjustment PC-I

V. New Business
A. NACDD / ITACC Annual   
     Conference July 2020 Washington,   
     D.C.
B. State Plan Amendment

VI. Announcements
VII. Adjournment

Funded by Grant #2101GUSCDD, Administration for Community Living, Guam DD Council.
Broadcast Live Stream at https://www.facebook.com/guamddcouncil

LONDON (Reuters) — Britain will 
overhaul its espionage laws in the 
face of threats to national security 
ranging from cyber-attacks to perni-
cious lobbying that could undermine 
its economy, the country's interior 
minister said Wednesday.

Home Secretary Priti Patel said the 
reforms would include the creation of 
a new Foreign Influence Registration 
Scheme, similar to ones in the United 
States and Australia, to reduce the 
risk of foreign governments damaging 

Britain's interests.
Patel said the new laws, coupled 

with more powerful tools for Brit-
ain's police and intelligence agencies, 
"will be critical to help those on the 
front line deal with the threats we are 
constantly facing."

Britain's domestic spy service MI5 
warned lawmakers in January that 
the Chinese Communist Party had 
employed a woman to exert improper 
influence over members of parliament.

The new legislation would make it an 

offense to be an undeclared foreign spy, 
introduce a new foreign interference 
offence and widen responses to the use 
of drones and cyber attacks on critical 
infrastructure and other targets.

It will also allow courts to impose 
longer sentences for foreign state-
backed crimes, the interior ministry 
said.

MI5 Director General Ken McCal-
lum said existing espionage laws were 
being skirted by cyber-espionage 
experts.

"State actors are stealing not only 
national security secrets, but our 
cutting-edge science, research and 
technology. They are attempting to 
interfere covertly with our democracy, 
economy and society," McCallum said. 

The planned reforms would also 
restrict the access of people convicted 
of terror offences from claiming civil 
legal aid.

Mexico, Brazil leaders
may snub Biden's
Americas summit

MEXICO CITY/SAO PAULO 
(Reuters) — Mexican President 
Andres Manuel Lopez Obrador said 
Tuesday he would not attend the 

U.S.-hosted Summit of the Ameri-
cas next month if all countries in the 
region were not invited, while Brazil-
ian President Jair Bolsonaro is also 
likely to skip the meeting, sources 
told Reuters.

The absence of the leaders of 
Latin America's two biggest econo-
mies would be a blow for the get-to-

gether of regional heads of state, 
which is expected to tackle issues 
from migration to the environment 
but also showcase democracy in the 
hemisphere.

Mexico's leader, a leftist, has said 
he wants all the countries in the 
region to be invited. It is unclear 
whether the United States will invite 

Cuba, Nicaragua and Venezuela, who 
are governed by authoritarian social-
ist administrations that have been at 
odds with Washington.

"If they're excluded, if not all are 
invited, a representative from the 
Mexican government would go, but I 
wouldn't," Lopez Obrador said during 
his regular news conference Tuesday.

UK to reform espionage laws
to tackle online, state threats

Home Secretary Priti 
Patel said the reforms 

would include the 
creation of a new 
Foreign Influence 

Registration Scheme.



11

GUAM
 DAILY POST • TUESDAY, M

AY 17, 2022

Chamorro

A great way to learn and increase your Chamorro Vocabulary is by 
doing Crossword Puzzles. Crossword puzzles provide hours of 
enjoyment and challenge. With practice and patience you’ll be 
done in no time!

Across: 2. buteti 3. Desiembre 5. susonyan 6. batangga 8. tongho 11. ayuyu 12. fofo 13. chikulati
Down: 1. gai 2. bumisita 3. deon 4. pat 7. atdao 9. hiyok 10. aluda

ALUDA 
ATDAO 
AYUYU 
BATANGGA 

BUMISITA 
BUTETI 
CHIKULATI 
DEON 
DESIEMBRE 
FOFO' 
GAI
HIYOK 

PAT 
SUSONYAN 
TONGHO 

groupers 
sun
coconut crab
any form
 of sled
visited
puffer fish
chocolate
pinch
December
valley have
 something 
bluebanded
 surgeonfish
or
swamp
neck

Across
2. puffer fish
3. December
5. swamp
6. any form of sled
8. neck
11. coconut crab
12. valley
13. chocolate

Down
1. have something
2. visited
3. pinch
4. or
7. sun
9. bluebanded surgeonfish
10. groupers

I K X I Q Q Y O L Z R R

A T D A O Q F L N S G T

G N A Y N O S U S Q T R

J J Y L F Z B H D D O V

S F U G U S U D E O N A

L W Y X J K M S W Q G T

O B U T E T I F B G H J

N J U Q E E S H N A O F

V U B T M K I A C O K B

Q S W B B Y T W V J F P

G L R I O A A L U D A M

X E U K B M P P I N W C

1

4

2

5

8

11

13

9 10

76

12

3

Guam Solid Waste Authority
Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Thursday, May 19, 2022 – 1:00 PM (ChST)

AGENDA
I. Call to order
II. Roll Call
III. Determination of Proof of Publication
IV. Approval of Agenda Items
V. Approval of Minutes
VI. Reports
 a. Management Reports
     I. Operational Update
    II. FY21 Audit Report
 b. Legal Counsel’s Report
 c. Committee Reports
     I. Zero Waste Bill
VII. Unfinished Business
 a. Island Wide Trash Collection Initiative
 b. Ordot Post Closure Plan Update
 c. Layon Cells 1 and 2 Closure
 d. Rate Case with the Public Utilities Commission
VIII. New Business
 a. Compensation Plan
     I. Resolution No. 2022-008
IX. Communicating and Correspondence
X. Public Forum:
 a. Ken Leon Guerrero
XI. Next Meeting
XII. Adjourn 

Join Zoom Meeting:
Link: https://zoom.us/j/9140408814?pwd=TjZ3U0dHSVd0ajlKRjBhcWFrc1ZYZz09

 Meeting ID: 914 040 8814   Passcode: 777546

For more information, please contact GSWA Chief of Administration, Alicia Fejeran, at 
Alicia.Fejeran@gswa.guam.gov or 671-646-3111. Persons needing telecommunication device for the 

Hearing/Speech Impaired (TDD) may contact 671-475-8339.

This advertisement was paid for by GSWA.

Access live stream of the meeting on GSWA website: https://www.guamsolidwasteauthority.com/

The Guam Solid Waste Authority Board of Directors will have a board meeting May 19, 2022 at 1:00 PM. 

The meeting will be conducted via Zoom











The Original 
Waste to Energy 
Contract Died on 
its own TERMS



A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

1982 License Death





























A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract





A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2008 Federal Receivership







A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

2010 OAG Claim Denial

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2008 Federal Receivership





A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

2010 OAG Claim Denial

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2012 GEPA Permit Denial

2008 Federal Receivership





A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

2010 OAG Claim Denial

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2012 GEPA Permit Denial

2008 Federal Receivership

2014 Bill 433-32 W-2-E Failed







A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

2010 OAG Claim Denial

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2012 GEPA Permit Denial

2008 Federal Receivership

2014 Bill 433-32 W-2-E Failed

2015 GEDA Approval REVOKED











A deal that will never happen:

Contract Challenges

2010 OAG Claim Denial

1982 License Death

2003 GSC Voided Contract

2012 GEPA Permit Denial

2008 Federal Receivership

2014 Bill 433-32 W-2-E Failed

2015 GEDA Approval REVOKED

2021 GRRP Lawsuit Terminated
with Prejudice







W2E is a Numbers Game



GRRP Fantasy vs. Reality

Community TPD Population

Guam 725 156,358

Escambia Co.,  FL 700 305,817

Madison Co., AL 725 346,892

Monterey Co., CA 750 428,862



2013 Pre-Restrictions= 200 Tons Per Day

2014 Pre-Restrictions= 193 Tons Per Day



W2E is a Numbers Game





W2E is a Numbers Game

Waste-to-Energy will lower 
tipping fees!



Tipping Fees HRRF WTE: $190.00

W2E is a Numbers Game

Harrisburg/Dauphin County
Population 268,100



Tipping Fees HRRF WTE: $190.00

Surrounding Counties:    $ 80.00

W2E is a Numbers Game

Harrisburg/Dauphin County
Population 268,100







2012 WTE RFI 

Cleveland, Cuyahoga County 

OHIO



2012 WTE RFI 

Cleveland, Cuyahoga County 

OHIO

Population:         1,396,113 



2012 WTE RFI 

Cleveland, Cuyahoga County 

OHIO

Population:         1,396,113 

MSW TPD:                3,900 



2012 WTE RFI 

Cleveland, Cuyahoga County 

OHIO

Population:         1,396,113 

MSW TPD:                3,900 

Review Cost:       $1,700,000 
50 Proposals/25 Companies





2012 WTE RFI 

Cleveland, Cuyahoga County 

OHIO

Population:         1,396,113 

MSW TPD:                3,900 

Review Cost:       $1,700,000 

UNAFFORDABLE

50 Proposals/25 Companies















$70,612,286.07

$12,300,000.00 

One the first day of operations
GRRP will have earned:

At the end of the first year of 

operations GovGuam will have 
negative cash flow of:



Unacceptable Risk



Unacceptable Risk

Providing $200 Million Taxpayer dollars 
Guaranteed . . . 



Unacceptable Risk

Providing $200 Million Taxpayer dollars 
Guaranteed . . . 
. . . to a company that has never designed, 
built, or operated something as complex as 
a Waste-to-Energy facility. . . 



Unacceptable Risk

Providing $200 Million Taxpayer dollars 
Guaranteed . . . 
. . . to a company that has never designed, 
built, or operated something as complex as 
a Waste-to-Energy facility. . . . to design, 
build, and operate a Waste-to-Energy 
facility.



• 1. Engage the services of a Subject Matter 
Expert that has a minimum of 5 years of 
experience designing, building, and/or 
operating a Waste-to-Energy Plant to report 
to SWMA and GEDA the economic viability of 
a Waste-to-Energy plant on Guam using 
existing technology.

Suggest steps moving forward:



• 1. Engage the services of a Subject Matter 
Expert that has a minimum of 5 years of 
experience designing, building, and/or 
operating a Waste-to-Energy Plant to report 
to SWMA and GEDA the economic viability of 
a Waste-to-Energy plant on Guam using 
existing technology.

• 2. Create a Request for Proposals, and 
require proposers to have verifiable 
experience designing, and/or building a 
Waste-to-Energy plant that has ben 
operational for a minimum of 60 months.

Suggest steps moving forward:



Suggest steps moving forward:

• 1. Engage the services of a Subject Matter Expert 
that has a minimum of 5 years of experience 
designing, building, and/or operating a Waste-to-
Energy Plant to report to SWMA and GEDA the 
economic viability of a Waste-to-Energy plant on 
Guam using existing technology.

• 2. Create a Request for Proposals, and require 
proposers to have verifiable experience designing, 
and/or building a Waste-to-Energy plant that has 
ben operational for a minimum of 60 months.

•3. Do not have taxpayers 
guarantee payment of any 
Private Activity Bonds (PAB) 
issued to fund construction 
of any PAB funded Waste-to-
Energy plant.



 

 
 
 
 

Guam Solid Waste Authority 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

Agenda 
Thursday, May 19, 2022, 1:00pm 

via video conference 
 

I. Call to order 

II. Roll Call  

III. Determination of Proof of Publication  

IV. Approval of Agenda Items 

V. Approval of Minutes 

VI. Reports 

a. Management reports 

i. Operational Update 

ii. FY2021 Audit Report 

b. Legal Counsel’s Report 

c. Committee reports  

i. Zero Waste Bill update 

VII. Unfinished Business  

a. Island Wide Trash Collection Initiative  

b. Ordot Post Closure Plan update 

c. Layon Cells 1 and 2 Closure  

d. Rate Case with the Public Utilities Commission   

VIII. New Business  

a. Compensation Plan 

i. Resolution No. 2022-008 

IX. Communications and Correspondence  

X. Public Forum:  

a. Ken Leon Guerrero 

XI. Next meeting  

XII. Adjourn  

 



Solid Waste Operations Fund
Operating Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2022 and September 30, 2021 As of As of %
                               (Unaudited) 31-Mar-22 30-Sep-21 Change Change

  

 
ASSETS

 Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted 5,518,458 4,947,806 570,652 12%
 Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 4,511,811 5,056,015 -544,204 -11%
 Receivables, net:
    Tipping Fees 2,662,327 2,889,404 -227,077 -8%
 Due from other funds
 Due from component units
 Deposits and other assets
      Total assets 12,692,596 12,893,225 -200,629 -2%

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
 

 Liabilities:
    Accounts payable 0 0 0  
    Accrued payroll and other 1,013,167 1,213,291 -200,124 -16%
    Due to component units  
    Due to other funds 971,620 1,692,448 -720,828 -43%
    Deferred revenue 0  
    Deposits and other liabilities 0  
      Total liabilities 1,984,787 2,905,739 -920,952 -32%

 
 Fund balance (deficit):  
      Non-spendable  
      Restricted 4,001,798 4,150,133 -148,335 -4%
      Committed 0 0  
      Assigned 6,706,009 5,837,353 868,656 15%
      Unassigned 0 0  
      Total fund balance (deficit) 10,707,807 9,987,486 720,321 7%
      Total liabilities and fund balances (deficit) 12,692,596 12,893,225 -200,632 -2%



Operating Budget Revenues, Other Sources, Expenditures, Reserves

As of March 31, 2022  

Unaudited Annual Equipment Reimbursement

Budget  Replacement/ Preconstruction Total Allocated

Operations ARPA Layon Cell Closure Cell 3 Costs Budget Budget ACTUALS Variance

 Revenues:  

   Commercial Fees (Large) 9,117,496 0 0 9,117,496 4,546,257 4,481,566 -64,691 -1%

   Others - Government/Commercial Fees 1,253,410 0 0 1,253,410 472,532 472,532 0 0%

   Residential Collection Fees 8,050,308 0 0 8,050,308 4,014,125 3,999,705 -14,420 0%

   Host Community Fees 336,624 0 0 336,624 167,851 160,672 -7,180 -4%

    Other Revenues 487,857 0 0 487,857 243,260 243,261 1 0%

    Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 526 526 n/a

    Prior Year Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a

      Total revenues 19,245,695 0 0 19,245,695 9,444,025 9,358,262 -85,764 -0.9%

    A/R Adjustment 3% of Residential Revenues -241,509 0 0 -241,509 -120,424 (119,991) 432 -0.4%

    Net Revenues 19,004,186 0 0 19,004,186 9,323,601 9,238,269 -85,333 -0.9%

    ARPA Budget Allocation 0 10,374,267 0 10,374,267 1,076,185 1,076,185 0 0.0%

Total Revenues/ARPA Allocation 19,004,186 10,374,267 0 29,378,453 10,399,786 10,314,454   -85,332 -0.8%

Transfers In - Reimb. From Cell 3 0 0 0 850,194 850,194 850,194 850,194        0 n/a

Fund Balance - Cell Closure Reserves 0 0 165,000 0 165,000 0 -                0 n/a

Fund Balance - Equipment Replacement 1,100,000 1,100,000

    TOTAL REVENUES/OTHER SOURCES: 19,004,186 10,374,267 1,265,000 850,194 31,493,647 11,249,980 11,164,646 -85,334 -0.8%

 Expenditures by Object:  

    Salaries and wages 2,691,533 0 0 2,691,533 1,305,209 1,163,119 -142,090 -10.9%

    Contractual services:      

       Layon Operator 3,759,073 504,000 58,553 4,321,626 1,886,179 1,882,040 -4,139 -0.2%  

       Layon Operations 572,184 40,000 165,000 0 777,184 308,433 274,645 -33,788 -11.0%

       Harmon Hauler Station Operations 3,156,933 77,000 84,132 3,318,065 1,779,033 1,693,241 -85,792 -4.8%

       Closure & postclosure care 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0.0%

        Recycling Programs 966,755 0 70,880 1,037,635 518,818 538,236 19,418 3.7%

       GEPA Appropriation 202,992 0 0 202,992 30,855 30,855 0 n/a

        Contractual Employees 260,000 960,000 132,088 1,352,088 676,044 668,199 -7,845 -1.2%

       Vehicle Maintenance 255,650 685,064 0 940,714 470,357 450,284 -20,073 -4.3%

       PUC/Legal Expenses 80,000 152,000 0 232,000 105,499 105,499 0 0.0%

        Others 240,952 36,204 344,427 621,583 139,632 139,632 0 0.0%

         Total contractual services: 11,494,539 2,454,268 165,000 690,080 14,803,887 6,914,850 6,782,631 -132,219 -1.9%

    Receiver 0 0 0 0 0 0 158,931 158,931 n/a

    Travel 24,000 0 0 24,000 2,137 2,137 0 0.0%

    Supplies 307,943 0 112,113 420,056 205,028 213,311 8,283 4.0%

    Worker's compensation 4,000 0 0 4,000 2,000 0 -2,000 n/a

    Drug testing 1,000 0 1,000 500 303 -197 -39.4%

    Equipment 20,394 0 0 20,394 10,898 10,898 0 n/a

    Utilities - power 71,775 0 21,000 92,775 46,338 46,633 295 0.6%

    Utilities - water 18,000 0 0 18,000 9,000 5,341 -3,659 -40.7%

    Communications 61,490 0 0 61,490 30,745 25,732 -5,013 -16.3%

    Capital outlays 680,635 7,920,000 1,100,000 0 9,700,635 340,319 340,319 0 0.0%

   Miscellaneous 343,626 0 27,000 370,626 185,313 204,258 18,945 10.2%

   Reserves - Layon Landfill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a

   Transfers to Host Community Fund 336,624 0 0 336,624 168,312 160,672 -7,640 -4.5%

   Transfer out to General Fund (Debt Service), Cell 3 Expenses2,998,625 0 0 2,998,625 1,499,313 1,522,021 22,708 1.5%

    Other Expenditures/Reserves: 4,868,113 7,920,000 1,100,000 160,113 14,048,225 2,499,903 2,531,625 31,722 1.3%

  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES/RESERVES: 19,054,184 10,374,268 1,265,000 850,193 31,543,645 10,719,962 10,636,306 -83,656 -0.8%
  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues/sources over  

  (under expenditures/reserves)   528,338

Note:  

   This report is based on preliminary month end numbers and is subject to change based on DOA updates and  

    accounting adjustments.

   ARPA Funds are allocated based on when they are expended.

    Bad debt expense was based on FY2021 write off approximately 3% of Residential Revenues.



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR
TONNAGE 4,021   3,961  4,496  4,288  4,448  4,646  5,491  6,597   5,210    5,430    4,997    5,113  4,709  4,065  4,646        
REVENUE 621$    619$   694$   661$   687$   719$   849$   1,016$ 796$     834$     769$     789$   725$   636$   728$         

 

Compared to previous year March 2021, March 2022 revenues higher by 4.9%.

FIFTEEN (15) MONTHS 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

TONNAGE REVENUE



FUND BALANCE as of March 31, 2022
  Ordot

Operational Post Closure
Fund Fund Total

Fund Balance, September 30, 2021 5,837,353 4,150,133 9,987,486

Operating Budget, net change
Revenues/Other Sources 11,164,645 1,000,500 12,165,145
Expenditures/Reserves 10,636,306 ‐1,148,835 9,487,471
Net Operating Budget 528,339 ‐148,335 380,005
Add back:  
Capital Outlay ‐ Equipment Replacement reserves
   set asides 340,318 0 340,318
Total Net change in Fund Balance 868,657 ‐148,335 720,322
Ending Fund Balance, March 31, 2022 6,706,009 4,001,798 10,707,808

Note: 
Carts and the Diesel Flat bed expected to be expended this fiscal year, total $188,760.
4 Fleet trucks are expected to arrived and paid in FY2023.



Operating Budget Revenues, Expenditures, Reserves

As of March 31, 2022  

Unaudited FY2022 FY2021 %
Actuals to Actuals to Increase

Date Date Variance (Decrease)
 Revenues:
   Commercial Fees (Large) 4,481,566 3,941,705 539,861 13.7%
   Others - Government/Commercial Fees 472,532 863,754 -391,222 -45.3%
   Residential Collection Fees 3,999,705 3,722,770 276,935 7.4%
   Host Community Fees 160,672 154,619 6,053 3.9%
    Other Revenues 243,261 266,489 -23,228 -8.7%

    Interest Income 1,026 1,613 -587 -36.4%

    Total Revenues before A/R adjustment 9,358,762 8,950,950 407,812 4.6%
    A/R Adjustment -119,991 -111,683 -8,308 7.4%
     Net: revenues 9,238,771 8,839,267 399,504 4.5%
    ARPA Budget Allocation 1,076,185 0 1,076,185 n/a
      Total Revenues/ARPA Allocation 10,314,956 8,839,267 1,475,689 16.7%
   Transfers In - Reimb. From Cell 3 850,193 0 850,193 n/a
   Fund Balance - Cell Closure Reserves 0 0 0 n/a
Total Revenues/Transfers In: 11,165,146 8,839,267 2,325,882 26.3%

 
 Expenditures by Object:   
    Salaries and wages - regular 756,677 824,032 -67,355 -8.2%
    Salaries and wages - overtime 87,952 57,491 30,461 53.0%
    Salaries and wages - fringe benefits 318,490 320,124 -1,634 -0.5%

1,163,119 1,201,647 -38,528 -3.2%
  
    Contractual services:
        Layon Operations 1,882,040 1,598,718 283,322 17.7%
        Layon Others 274,645 225,371 49,274 21.9%
        Harmon Hauler Station Operations 1,693,241 1,484,279 208,962 14.1%
        Closure & postclosure care (OPCC) 1,148,835 1,156,051 -7,216 -0.6%
        Recycling/Other Programs 538,236 492,016 46,220 9.4%
        GEPA Appropriation 30,855 59,936 -29,081 -48.5%
        Contractual Employees 668,199 558,620 109,579 19.6%
        Vehicle Maintenance 450,284 555,093 -104,809 -18.9%
        PUC/Legal Expenses 105,499 99,813 5,686 5.7%
        Other Contractual 139,632 104,366 35,266 33.8%
    Total Contractual 6,931,465 6,334,262 597,205 9.4%

     Receiver 158,931 104,176 54,755 52.6%  

    Travel 2,137 0 2,137 n/a
    Supplies 213,311 159,090 54,221 34.1%
    Worker's compensation 0 0 0 n/a
    Drug testing 303 282 21 7.4%
    Equipment 10,898 628 10,270 1635.4%
    Utilities - power 46,633 31,408 15,225 48.5%
    Utilities - water 5,341 8,741 -3,400 -38.9%
    Communications 25,732 29,888 -4,156 -13.9%
    Capital outlays 0 0 0 n/a
   Miscellaneous 204,258 132,653 71,605 54.0%
   Reserves 0 0 0 n/a
   Transfers to Host Community Fund 160,672 154,619 6,053 3.9%
   Transfer out to General Fund (Debt Service), Cell 3 Expen 1,522,021 1,521,021 1,000 0.1%
    Other Expenditures 2,191,305 2,038,330 152,976 7.5%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 10,444,822 9,678,415 766,408 7.9%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over  
  (under expenditures 720,322 -839,149 1,559,470 -185.8%
Other financing sources (uses),  
  Transfers in from other funds 0 0 0
   Transfers out to other funds 0 0 0
      Total other financing sources (uses), net 0 0 0
       Net Change in Fund Balance: 720,322 -839,149 1,559,470 -185.8%
Beginning Fund Balance, 09-30 (unaudited FY21) 9,987,486 11,066,473 -1,078,987 -9.8%
Ending Fund Balance, February 10,707,808 10,227,324 480,483 4.7%

Note:

   This report is based on preliminary month end numbers and is subject to change based on DOA updates and

    accounting adjustments.

   



Solid Waste Operations Fund Highlights -

GSWA Operations Fund fund balance decreased by $1.1 m of
which $813k decrease is from the Operations Fund and $247k decrease from 
the OPCC Fund.  The decrease of fund balance in the Operations Fund was
primarily due to the reduction of revenues due to COVID19.
Compared to the budgeted revenues of $19.4 m, GSWA
only recognized $18.5m in revenues.
 
Tipping fee revenues of $18.5m were higher by $349k than previous 
year of $18.17m.
Expenditures were $17.2m in FY2021, an increase of $30k
compared to the previous year.

Findings -
Sole Source procurement for temporary staffing services for 10
consecutive years since FY2011.
Response - Title 10, Chapter 51A, 51A118(b) of the Guam Code
Annotated, allows GSWA to continue the contract for no more
than three (3) years from the date of transfer of management 
from federal receivership.  However, GSWA plans to bid out the
services before the 3 year period lapses.

No Management Letter Comments.



Indicators Target Jan-22 Feb-22 22-Mar
Days in Cash 90 69 71.18 70

Collection Ratio
* Month to Date 98% 90% 108% 110%
* Year to Date 98% 100% 101% 103%
Account Receivable Days 60 57 57 55
Account Payable Days 40 days 25 34 33

Residential Customers 20,537 21,585 21,593 21,380

Trucks Purchased - FY2020 4 0 0 0
Trucks Purchased - FY2021 2 0 0 0
Trucks Purchased - FY2022 4 0 0 0
Contamination Rate 25.0% 69% 60% 54%

 
 
 
 

KEY INDICATORS
As of March 31, 2022



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR
TONNAGE 2,180 2,029 2,482 2,110 2,346 2,515 2,323 2,523 2,344 2,207  2,347  2,370  2,281  1,998  2,304      
REVENUE 635$          639$   646$   649$   652$   657$   661$   656$   661$      663$   663$   674$   668$   674$   657$       
# OF CUSTOMERS 20,456 20,692 20,811 20,904 21,031 21,148 21,205 21,155 21,264 21,281 21,268 21,528 21,585 21,593 21,380

 

Compared to previous year March 2021, March 2022 revenues higher by 1.7%.

Residential Revenue & Tonnage
JANUARY 2021 - MARCH 2022

FIFTEEN (15) MONTHS 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

TONNAGE REVENUE # OF CUSTOMERS



 

 

 
Bayview Hotel – 10th Floor  1475 Pale San Vitores Road Tumon, Guam 96913          (P) 671.565.6633           (F) 671.565.6632          

 

 
 

 

GSWA Wage Study Analysis and Recommendation - Narrative 
 
Reference:  PO # P216R00091 
  “Compensation & Pay Plan Analysis Project” 
 
Findings: 
Based on the parameters of the project (GSWA Compensation and Pay Plan Analysis Project – PO No. 
P216R00091), GSWA’s current compensation and pay scale was compared to the requested like agencies 
of Guam Power Authority (GPA) and Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA).  The spreadsheet (please see 
accompanying document “GSWA Wage Study Analysis and Recommendation – Spreadsheet”) findings 
indicated that, for all existing comparable positions available, GSWA’s wages were, on average, 48% lower 
than GWA and 29% lower than GPA.  Thereby, it is evident that GSWA’s wage scale was not close to parity 
with said comparative agencies. 
 
Recommendation: 
To increase GSWA’s grades and bring GSWA closer to parity, with the comparative agencies of GWA and 
GPA, is logical.  We affirm the need for a wage scale increase.   
 
Given the expediency and the need to meet the fiscal year budgeting timeline, a simple solution is to 
uniformly increase the grades of all positions across the board.  For example, increase all positions by one 
grade, two grades, or three grades.  The amount of the uniform increase will be at the discretion of GSWA 
management.  This is where GSWA would weigh all business elements to determine fiscal propensity and 
justify the best decision on the amount of increase.  Regardless of the decision, it is our recommendation 
to do it uniformly.   
 
Our calculations indicate that a two grade appears the most feasible, given the expressed end goal of 
GSWA.  With a two-grade increase, GSWA will still be, on average, 25% lower than GWA and 15% lower 
than Guam Power Authority.  Again, assuming all else is equal, this is based on average calculations for all 
existing comparable positions using available information.  More or less positions, in the comparison, 
could statistically make a difference.  
 
Please see the accompanying document “GSWA Wage Study Analysis and Recommendation – 
Spreadsheet” for the numerical presentation of the data. 
 
We appreciate your working partnership in the analysis of this important issue. 
 
 
 


	4-22-2022 GSWA BOD MEETING MINUTES - FINAL
	5-19 Proof of Publication
	0512 COMPLETE
	0517 COMPLETE

	2022 May 19 KLG 2 Board Presenation THE CASE AGAINST GRRP CONTRACT FINAL DRAFT
	GSWA AGENDA 5-19-2022
	GSWA FINANCIAL PRESENTATION BOD March 2022
	BALANCE SHEET
	BUDGET
	COMMERCIAL TONNAGE - REVENUE
	FUND BALANCE
	FY 22 V FY21
	FY 2021 AUDIT HIGHLIGHTS
	KEY INDICATORS
	RESIDENTIAL TONNAGE - REVENUE

	GSWA Wage Study Analysis and Recommendation

